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Richard J. Engelhardt appeared on behalf of the Office of Attorney Ethics.

Respondent failed to appear, despite proper notice. 

To the Honorable Chief Justice and Associate Justices of the Supreme Court of New Jersey.

This matter was before us based on a motion for final discipline filed by the Office of Attorney Ethics (AOAE@). On November 20, 2000 respondent entered into a plea agreement in the United States District Court for the District of Columbia. Respondent pleaded guilty to a three-count information charging him with knowingly making false statements to the Federal Communications Commission, in violation of 18 U.S.C.A. 1001. 

Respondent was admitted to the New Jersey bar in 1976. On February 2, 2001 he was temporarily suspended in New Jersey following his guilty plea to filing false documents with the FCC in the District of Columbia. In re Belardi, 166 N.J. 365 (2001).
At the plea hearing, the judge elicited the factual basis for the guilty plea:

Mr. Park: I=ll be happy to recite the facts in detail, Your Honor.

The Court: All right.  Go ahead.

Mr. Park: Your Honor, the United States would have proven beyond a reasonable doubt that Mr. Belardi was employed until September of 1999 as vice president and regulatory counsel for Mobile Media, a paging services company with corporate offices located in Ridgefield, New Jersey.  Mr. Belardi maintained offices in Arlington, Virginia, and would prove also that the Federal Communications Commission is a Federal agency with its headquarters in the District of Columbia and that the FCC, in fact, regulates the paging industry.

The United States would have proven that at all relevant times, companies, including Mobile Media, which sought to provide paging services to consumers were required to file an application with the FCC for permission to construct a paging transmitter at a particular location.

The United States would prove that once the FCC approved the application, the company received a construction permit which authorized construction of the paging transmitter.  The permit provided the company with one year from the date of issuance to complete construction of the paging transmitter and to certify that it was in operation.

The United States would prove that failure to construct the paging transmitter within the one-year period would result in forfeiture of the license to construct and a loss of that potential transmission facility.

The FCC Form 489, which is denominated the Notification of Commencement of Service or of Additional or Modified Facilities, was utilized by companies to notify the FCC that construction had been completed on individual paging transmitting facilities and that facilities were, in fact, operational at the particular point in time.

The United States would prove that between on or about January 1, 1996 and on or about August 1, 1996, [respondent] completed and caused to be filed with the FCC false Form 489s, including the three FCC Form 489s referenced in attached criminal information, and that these falsely represented that construction had been completed on an individual paging transmission facility that was operational, when in truth and in fact no paging transmitting facility had been constructed within one year from the date of issuance of the permit, and that all these matters occurred within the District of Columbia.

The Court: Mr. Belardi, do you have any disagreement with the facts that are stated?

The Defendant: No, Your Honor.


[Exhibit B at 10-12]

On February 8, 2001 respondent was sentenced to a five-year term of probation, fined $15,000 and required to perform 100 hours of community service. Exhibits D and E.

On February 2, 2001 the New Jersey Supreme Court temporarily suspended respondent from the practice of law, pursuant to R. 1:20-13(b). Respondent remains suspended to date.

The OAE urged the imposition of an eighteen-month  suspension, retroactive to the February 2, 2001 temporary suspension.


*      *      *

Upon a de novo review of the record, we determined to grant the OAE=s motion for final discipline. The existence of a criminal record is conclusive evidence of respondent=s guilt. R. 1:20-13(c) (1), In re Gipson, 103 N.J. 75, 77 (1986). Respondent=s conviction for filing false documents with the FCC is clear and convincing evidence that he violated RPC 8.4(b) (commission of a criminal act that reflects adversely on his honesty, trustworthiness or fitness as a lawyer) and RPC 8.4(c) (conduct involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit or misrepresentation). Only the quantum of discipline remains at issue. R. 1:20-13 (c) (2) (ii); In re Goldberg, 105 N.J. 278, 280 (1987).

The OAE urged the imposition of an eighteen-month suspension on respondent, relying on three cases involving similar crimes: In re Silverman, 80 N.J. 489 (1979) (eighteen-month suspension imposed where the attorney, a fifty-year member of the bar, pleaded guilty in federal court to obstruction of justice; the attorney had filed an answer in a bankruptcy action, falsely stating that his client had the lawful right to twenty-six tractors and trailers, knowing that the addendum to a lease for the vehicles had been backdated to support the false claim);  In re Primavera, 157 N.J. 459 (1999) (eighteen-month suspension imposed where the attorney pleaded guilty to misprision of a felony; the attorney became aware that his client and others intended to submit a false HUD-1 statement in a real estate closing, but took no action to prevent it; the attorney then concealed the document from real estate brokers and law enforcement authorities); and In re Charny, 165 N.J. 561 (2000) (eighteen-month suspension imposed where the attorney pleaded guilty in federal court to conspiracy to make false statements; the attorney and campaign donors falsely asserted that the attorney had interviewed them about their campaign contributions to a heavily contested union president=s reelection campaign.)

Here, respondent falsified FCC documents and submitted them to the FCC to deceive regulators about the matter. In light of the seriousness of respondent=s criminal conduct, we unanimously determined to impose an eighteen-month suspension, retroactive to his February 2, 2001 temporary suspension in New Jersey. One member did not participate.

We also required respondent to reimburse the Disciplinary Oversight Committee for administrative costs.
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